
No. Comment/Question RTA Response

1

has the RFP for operations and maintenance services been 
released? There was an article in Mass Transit Magazine that 
said the RFP would be released on January 2, 2019. I am 
working with an international operator who is interested in 
participating in this procurement. Appreciate any information 
you can provide.

(emailed) This link will provide you with the requested 
information: https://www.drivertaforward.com.

2 I found the RFP & the RFEI docs, are replies to both required at 
this time or only the RFP? Proposers are only required to respond to the RFP.

3
Will there be a dial-in or teleconference for today's Pre-Proposal 
conference for RFP # 2019

‐

005? It would be helpful for vendors 
who are interested, but are not able to be there in person.

(No Response)

4
I'm emailing to follow up regarding Eleanor's question below. Is 
it possible to attend today's Pre-Proposal conference via dial-in 
or teleconference?

(emailed) There will not be a dial-in for the pre-proposal 
conference. 

5 Please provide my company with notifications on this project. Done.

6 Please provide the list of participants for the pre-proposal 
conference and facilities tour.

List of participants in the pre-proposal conference was 
posted to driveRTAforward.com on January 16, 2019. 
There was no sign-in form for the facilities tour.

7

I am hoping you can email me a copy of any specifications 
and/or documents associated with this project. If they can’t be 
emailed, please let me know. Please do not send them if a fee 
is required.

All documents are available at driveRTAforward.com.

8 With Monday being Martin Luther King Holiday, would the RTA 
consider extending the due date for questions to Tuesday

(emailed to distribution list) Ms. Borst, unfortunately due to 
the very tight timeline involved in this procurement, we will 
not be altering any of the dates published in the RFP.

9 I assume it [information relative to the RFP] is posted there 
now?

(emailed) Mr. Armstrong, all documents relative to the 
Operations and Maintenance RFP were posted on January 
4, 2019. 

10

During the transition, how many vehicles will be made available 
to the incoming contractor to perform training? The draft 
contract says one vehicle will be provided. This would require 
the bidder to bring in additional vehicles to complete the 
transition training.

Additional vehicles will be made available to the incoming 
contractor as available and in a manner that will not disrupt 
service delivery.

11
Please provide information regarding the current medical and 
other benefits including co-pays for each current incumbent 
employee. Please include as many specifics as possible.

Some benefits contribution information is available at 
driveRTAforward.com.  Personally Identifiable Information 
must be held confidential; however, aggregated fringe cost 
data is provided here. 

12 Please provide information regarding the current vacation and 
holiday benefits for each current incumbent employee. See response to answer 11.

13 Please provide information regarding the current retirement 
program in place with current contractor's employees. See response to answer 11.

14

Please confirm that the contractor will not be required to fund 
any current retirement plans, remaining vacation balances or 
any other benefits currently in place with current contractor 
employees.

The Contractor is not responsible for the employee-related 
liabilities of the prior contractor.  See Section 9(q) of the 
Contract.  The current retirement plan is a 401(k) plan.

15 Please provide any current incumbent employee positions that 
will not be required to be retained by the proposer. See responses to questions 214 and 215.

16 Please provide the last 12 months history for major component 
replacement and repair for the Agency provided fleet. Please see attached

17

Please provide the current rates paid to the existing contractor 
for variable and fixed costs for all services (Fixed Route, Street 
Car, Paratransit, and Ferry). Also, please indicate the total 
amount paid to the contractor for the last fiscal year.

Please refer to the Adopted Budgets posted online at 
driveRTAforward.com for fixed and variable fees. Please 
see question 128 for vendor payment history for the last 
three years.

18
Please confirm the volume of hours and/or trips on which 
proposers should base their proposals. Please describe plans 
for any changes to the volume of hours in the next 12 months.

Please refer to the Adopted Budget for FY 2019 posted 
online at driveRTAforward.com. The service expansion 
options provided within that document are the only potential 
service increases being evaluated at this time. 

19 Please clarify how the prices will be evaluated; will the full 
contract term be considered or only the Year 1 price?

The pricing for all nine (9) years of the contract, as referred 
to in Section 5.1.4.3 of the RFP. The evaluation of the 
prices are set out in Section 4.3.2 (5).

https://www.dropbox.com/s/42vjfs93lqyd9ac/Question%2011.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/42vjfs93lqyd9ac/Question%2011.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/42vjfs93lqyd9ac/Question%2011.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/42vjfs93lqyd9ac/Question%2011.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/8wczdxz9ne6d1hd/AAAVN070WTgx0Ai_c1_wQlvZa?dl=0


20
Please provide the revenue service hour definition for each of 
the services listed in the RFP. Please confirm the current 
process is billed at a platform hour rate.

The definition of “Revenue Service Hour” in the Contract 
has been revised with respect to ADA Paratransit Service.  
The revised definition of “Revenue Service Hour” in Section 
1 (40) of the Contract when read in conjunction with the 
other defined terms in that definition is applicable to all 
modes of transportation covered by the RFP and Contract.  

21
Please provide/confirm the current revenue miles and hours; 
current deadhead miles and hours; and current total miles and 
hours for these services.

Please see attached.

22
Please clarify the number of vehicles used in revenue service 
by day of week and peak service hours and number of buses in 
service at these times.

Please see attached.

23 Can you please unlock the run block excel document and 
provide to bidders?

Unlocked files were posted to driveRTAforward.com on 
1/29.

24
Please provide the current call volume, broken down by 
weekday, Saturday and Sunday to include hourly levels if 
possible.

Please see attached.

25
For fixed route service, please clarify if billable time continues 
past scheduled hours on the last trip due to exterior factors 
(traffic, weather, incidents, etc.).

As provided in Section 1 (40) of the Contract, if a Revenue 
Vehicle is in Revenue Service beyond the scheduled hours 
for reasons beyond the control of the Contractor, operation 
of the Revenue Vehicle would be compensable service if 
verified and approved by the RTA.

26 For paratransit service, please clarify if revenue hours begins at 
the first pick-up, even if that pick up is a no show.

Yes.  For ADA Paratransit Service, Revenue Service begins 
at the first pick up location of the day even if the passenger 
is a no show at that location.

27
If the Contractor is responsible for providing fuel and given 
historical volatility of fuel costs, will the Agency include a fuel 
escalator clause in the contract?

Fuel is provided by the Authority. Fuel usage will be 
monitored and rate adjustments will be made for excessive 
usage beyond what is necessary for approved service 
levels by the vendor.

28

Please provide information on the Agency provided fleet to 
include engine type, fuel type, current odometer readings, 
average miles operated per year. Please advise if the contractor 
is required to provide any items on the bus [fareboxes, radios, 
MDT, etc.].

Please see question 156 for fleet information. The 
contractor is not required to provide on-board equipment.

29 Please confirm whether the Contractor is responsible for engine 
and transmission overhauls for the vehicles?

Pursuant to Section 11(q) of the Contract, the RTA is 
responsible for engine and transmission overhauls at the 
end of the useful life of the vehicle involved.  However, if 
the overhaul is required due to the Contractor’s failure to 
perform adequate preventive maintenance or due to other 
acts or omissions of the Contractor, the Contractor is 
responsible for the cost of the overhaul. 

30 Are there any remaining warranties for the fleet or provided 
equipment?

All existing warranty information is provided at 
driveRTAforward.com. 

31
Does the Agency have a vehicle replacement schedule that can 
be shared? Any new buses in the process of being procured for 
either replacement or expansion?

A fleet replacement plan and Transit Asset Management 
Plan are provided at driveRTAforward.com.

32 Please provide the current run pick for paratransit services. See response to question 78. 
33 Please provide current shift schedules for Ferry Service. See driveRTAforward,com for ferry service schedules.
34 Please provide last 12 months of invoicing for Ferry Service. Please see attached.

35
What is the current level of productivity for each of the 
services? If available, please provide for weekday, Sat and Sun 
by service.

See response to question 103.

36

Please provide a listing of any liquidated damages charged or 
incentives earned over the past 12 months. Please clarify if the 
liquidated damages listed in the RFP differ from the current 
contract.

There have been no liquidated damages charged nor 
incentives applied over the past 12-months. The liquidated 
damages provided in the current RFP/draft contract are 
different from those provided in the current contract. The 
current contract can be viewed at driveRTAforward.com.

https://www.dropbox.com/s/zqgk79fkpq4bv12/Question%2021.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/693benfiu54x9po/Question%2022.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/3z2xttd75ir1xey/AABSdRNCpx7ENnsTv8C-cvYka?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/sdoxzhf127ivjzx/Question%2034.xlsx?dl=0


37 On-Time Performance -- Is sampling accepted or 100% of 
trips?; Is a pickup before the window still considered on-time?

(i) It is the intent of the RTA to measure On-Time 
Performance on 100% of trips for the stops that have been 
designated as Time-Points.
(ii) Please refer to Section 1 (29) of the O&M Agreement for 
the definition of On-Time. Proposers will note that there are 
defined thresholds anchored the published scheduled 
departure times / scheduled pick-up times for each Time-
Point.                                                             On-time 
performance will be calculated by transportation mode on 
the basis of all trips scheduled for that mode.

38
Please clarify any specifics required relating to phone and data 
lines needed. Number of lines, data line type (Cable, T-1, TDD, 
etc.).

The contractor is not required to provide phone or data lines 
or service to the RTA.

39 Please provide copies of the last three months of management 
reports from the Contractor.

All management report data from 2018 can be found at 
https://www.norta.com/2018reports. Data reported in 2019 
can be found at https://www.norta.com/About/Public-
Meetings-Reports.

40 Who handles passenger certifications? Please describe any 
responsibilities the contractor has for this process.

Paratransit passenger certifications are currently handled 
by the delegated management vendor but will be moved to 
direct management by the RTA under the new management 
model.

41

At various times, state, federal, and local governments change 
laws, rules and regulations which require a company to increase 
the wages or benefits for the employees that will be employed 
under this contract. If such an event occurs during the term of 
the agreement, how will the agency respond for a request for 
increased compensation. For example, the recent Affordable 
Care Act legislation significantly affected the level and cost of 
medical coverage for employees. Since these events cannot be 
anticipated and the costs are so significant, we need to 
understand the risk associated with such laws, rules or 
regulations.

See section 21e of the contract.

42
Current software: Please describe, including manufacturer 
product name and version number, the scheduling and 
dispatching products in place.

All technology currently utilized throughout the system 
(inclusive of hardware and software) is available at 
driveRTAforward.com. Additional information can be found 
here.

43

Current software: Please describe any additional modules in 
place to supplement the scheduling and dispatching system. For 
example, tools for call management, complaint management, 
rider communication via IVR or text, etc.

See response to Question 42

44
Current software: Please indicate whether these products are 
hosted by the Client, software manufacturer or if First Transit 
would be required to provided hosting services.

The RTA is responsible for hosting all provided software.

45

Hardware: Please describe the manufacturer make and model 
of any equipment currently in use or planned for use on the 
vehicles including cameras, safety/security systems, routers, 
signs, passenger counters, tablets and fare boxes.

All technology currently utilized throughout the system 
(inclusive of hardware and software) is available at 
driveRTAforward.com. Additional information can be found 
here.

46 Hardware: Is there a requirement for integration of tablets, 
signage, passenger counters with the dispatching system? All existing systems are presently integrated. 

47 IT: Who is required to provide the internet circuit for the 
facilities? The RTA provides connectivity to all operating facilities. 

48 IT: Is the Contractor able to segment a separate VLAN off the 
Agency internet service? Yes, this can be accommodated if needed. 

49 IT: What up/down bandwidth is available to the Contractor on 
the Agency internet service? The RTA's bandwidth is 50mb  up and down. 

50 IT: Please confirm Contractor can install their own managed 
router and switch for segmented VLAN.

Yes; however the expectation is that the contractor will use 
existing infrastructure. This must be done in coordination 
with RTA IT, if the bandwidth demand is too great, the 
contractor may be required to supply their own internet 
circuit.

51 IT: Please provide detail on the office/facility phone and internet 
lines/connections in each work area.

Each workstation is provided with a telephone and internet 
connection.

https://www.dropbox.com/s/7xmy8k2qw71tb88/Question%2042.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/7xmy8k2qw71tb88/Question%2042.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/7xmy8k2qw71tb88/Question%2042.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/7xmy8k2qw71tb88/Question%2042.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/7xmy8k2qw71tb88/Question%2042.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/dju70x8zys7dl7g/Question%2045.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/dju70x8zys7dl7g/Question%2045.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/dju70x8zys7dl7g/Question%2045.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/dju70x8zys7dl7g/Question%2045.pdf?dl=0


52 IT: Does the Contractor need to provide any network cabling or 
facility IT upgrades?

No, unless required by the contractor to support the 
contractor's network.

53 IT: Is there rack space available for Contractor servers, switch, 
routers, etc.? Yes.

54 IT: Does the Contractor network need to support a facility 
camera system? If so, please provide details on the system. No, this is managed by RTA.

55 IT: Are there any non-standard system applications that need to 
be installed on Contractor’s workstations? The contractor is not expected to provide workstations.

56 IT: What systems, applications or on-bus technology does the 
Contractor need to provide computers or servers for?

The contractor is not expected to provide computers or 
servers. The contractor is responsible for providing payroll, 
human resources, and other software which relate solely to 
the internal functions of the contractor. 

57
IT: Call Recordings – Are Contractors required to make call 
recordings available to the Agency? HIPAA regulations raise 
concerns in this area and may require a very controlled process.

The Contract has been revised to clarify that the Contractor 
will record customer service calls to Rideline and ADA 
Paratransit and make those recordings available to RTA.

58

IT: For the Agency provided telephone system, are there 
Service Level Agreements (SLA), Business Continuity Plans 
(BCP) or Disaster Recovery (DR) plans that Contractors need to 
follow? If so, please provide copies.

The RTA's internet service provider is responsible for 
recovering the system in the event of failure. This is not the 
responsibility of the contractor. 

59
IT: Are there any current challenges or concerns with provided 
technology that need to be addressed? An example might be 
the system lacks capacity for anticipated growth.

No.

60
LD / REPORTING: Would the agency consider postponing 
Liquidated Damages during the first 90 days of the new contract 
period for a new contractor?

No. Section 22(a) (5) already provides for a six month 
phase in of Deductions.

61
LD / REPORTING: Please provide the actual performance for 
each performance standard listed by month for the past 12 
months

See response to questions 36 and 103.

62

LD / REPORTING: Would the agency consider setting the LD’s 
to be calculated based on actual performance data over the last 
12 months from the incumbent provider? With an appropriate 
measure of actual performance for a long-term provider that has 
been achieved throughout the existing contract term this can 
provide a reasonable level of performance expectations. 
 a. For example, if the on-time performance over the last 12 
months has been 84%, then the minimum standard is set at 
84% with no penalty, incentives for every 1% increase in on-
time performance and penalties should be assessed for any on-
time performance below 84%. 
 b. (What this does is sets the standard of performance that is 
currently being achieved, setting a better performance path into 
the future and ultimately will support the overall mission of the 
RTA in ensuring the highest level of customer service to the 
New Orleans community. This measurement will allow for 
vendors to reduce their budgetary allocations for anticipated LD 
assessments and ultimately places additional dollars into 
delivering the high level of quality service that RTA desires).

Some system and availability standards achieved under the 
current agreement have not been to the satisfaction of the 
RTA, or to the standards befitting the needs of the New 
Orleans citizenry.  The thresholds for Incentives and 
Deductions under this O&M Agreement have been 
established using a combination of examining market 
standards from established jurisdictions across North 
America, and assessing historical performance of the 
system.

63 Please confirm if the contractor is required to provide an 
Armored Car service to deposit farebox revenue.

The vendor will be responsible for security of farebox 
revenue deposits.

64

Please confirm who is responsible for responsible for paying for 
utility costs. Draft contract states the RTA is responsible for 
paying fuel costs and utility costs for Revenue Vehicles and 
Facilities used in providing services. Please clarify.

The Authority will pay utility costs. Utility usage will be 
monitored and rate adjustments will be made for excessive 
usage beyond what is reasonably expected based on 
historical utility usage. Contract and F-2 will be updated via 
Addendum.

65 Please provide the annual utility and fuel adjustment work up 
and results from the last year's calculation.

Utility and fuel adjustments are not part of the current 
operating agreement.

66
Please confirm that operations software included on the IT 
infrastructure (non-Transdev) will continue to be provided and 
paid for by the RTA. Example: E226

All operations software held by the RTA will continue to be 
provided.



67 Please confirm if the contractor will be not be required to 
provide any phone systems for any of the facilities.

Telephone systems are in place at all facilities and supplied 
by the RTA. If the contractor seeks to change or expand 
telephony services, it may do so at its cost with the approval 
of the RTA.

68 Please provide any equipment or software that will be required 
by the proposer that is not currently provided by the RTA. RTA will continue to provide all equipment.

69 Will the RTA consider accepting a performance bond or bid 
bond instead of a letter of credit? See RFP sections 4.1.4 and 4.1.5. 

70
Would the RTA consider accepting a commitment to provide a 
letter of credit with the proposal, with the successful bidder 
presenting an official letter of credit after contract award?

No.  See section 4.1.4

71

When the RTA writes in the RFP that the successful proposer is 
required to retain all current employees “without examination” if 
the incumbent employee works in a safety sensitive position, is 
the winning bidder precluded from applying its standard hiring 
procedures, notably administering its pre-employment drug test 
and background check?

No. See Section 9(g) of the Contract which requires pre-
employment background checks.  See also Section 9(r) 
which permits the Contractor to not hire any employee who 
fails to successfully complete drug and alcohol testing and 
Section 9(n) which permits the Contractor to dismiss any 
employee for failure to satisfy applicable drug and alcohol 
testing requirements.

72

Will the RTA consider an extension to the Technical Volume 50 
page limit in order to provide an adequate number of pages to 
describe operation and maintenance plans across four modes of 
transportation? (RFP pg. 14)

The technical volume page count will be increased to 75 
pages, via upcoming addendum.

73

Understanding that Volume 3 is to be submitted in a separate 
sealed envelope as part of a full package containing Volumes 1 
and 2 – please confirm Volumes 1 and 2 shall be provided in 
separate binders.

confirmed

74

Please confirm that the following will not count against the 50-
page limit for the Technical Volume:
 
 (a) Executive Summary
 (b)Cover Letter
 (c)Table of Contents
 (d)Tabs included to divide sections
 (e) Similar assignments performed within the last five years 
(RFP pg. 14 – Please note that for larger companies, these 
comprehensive lists can sometimes take up 10 pages or more).
 (f) Resumes of Key Personnel (RFP pg. 15)
 (g)Commitment letters from proposed key staff (RFP pg. 15)
 (h) Detailed transition schedule (RFP pg. 16)
 (i) Detailed organization chart (RFP pg. 16)
 (j) Any non-required attachments that help demonstrate aspects 
of our proposal, such as technology brochures, maintenance 
checklists, reporting samples, etc., or would the Agency prefer 
that we do not include these types of documents?

(a) included
(b) not included
(c) not included
(d) not included    
(e) included      
(f) long-form resumes may added as appendices    
(g) may be added as appendices    
(h) included      
(i) included   
(j) These attachments should not be provided

75
Please confirm if any of the shop equipment is in need of 
replacement. For example, the wheel press did not list an 
equipment condition.

Please see attached.

76
Can the RTA share the current list of DBE`s and the current 
level (%) of DBE`s under the incumbent contract for the year 
2018?

This information is not available at this time.  An update will 
be provided via addendum if it becomes available.

77

The current blocks for fixed routes provided are for the "pick" in 
effect from May 27, 2018 to September 1, 2018. It is our 
understanding that the current blocks operated are different 
from this "pick". Could the RTA please provide the same 
information for the "pick" which is currently in effect? Could the 
RTA provide route level line statistics for both May and 
September picks?

This information is not available at this time.  An update will 
be provided via addendum if it becomes available.

https://www.dropbox.com/s/b45lqggaxibvjwr/Question%2075.pdf?dl=0


78

The RTA has kindly provided a list of paratransit trips showing 
the pick up and the drop off zip codes, and covering one month 
of operation. However, some valuable information are missing 
that would help build a robust operations plan and pricing: pick-
up times, drop-off times, run numbers, departure and arrival 
times to/from the yard. Could the RTA please provide a 
complete driver manifest for the last three (3) months?

Please see attached.

79

The RTA has provided information about drivers' absenteeism 
in the "Driver statistics" document, thank you for that 
information. However, it is our understanding from Item 13 - Non-
Driver Employee Statistics, that this absenteeism comes from 
the ADP eTime system, which only tracks employee leave 
usage such as vacation, sick, jury, floating and bereavement. 
Leaves of absence like short term disability, worker's 
compensation, or FMLA are not coded into that system. It is our 
understanding from Item 02 - Technology (Hardware and 
Software) that RTA is providing a timekeeping and dispatch 
system called "TKD". Would TKD include these leaves of 
absence not tracked in ADP eTime, and could RTA please 
provide this information for the last 12 months? If this 
information is not available in TKD, please indicate over the last 
month how many drivers, on average, did not show up based on 
FMLA, call outs, etc.

This information is not available at this time.  An update will 
be provided via addendum if it becomes available.

80

Item 14 "Collective Bargaining Agreements" include all the 
existing CBAs and amendments. However we have noted that 
CBA amendments for ULU for 2018 and 2019 are missing. 
Could RTA please provide these amendments?

This information was uploaded to driveRTAforward.com on 
January 11.

81

The seniority lists provided in Item 15 seems to have been 
prepared in late June 2018. Section 9 (n) from the draft 
Operations and Maintenance Agreement states that "all 
employees of the RTA's incumbent contractor [...] shall be hired 
by the Contractor into comparable positions." In order to meet 
that contractual obligation, could RTA please provide an 
updated list of employees?

This information is not available at this time.  An update will 
be provided via addendum if it becomes available.

82
Could RTA please provide a more recent version of the 
following information: - Non-represented employee information - 
Organizational charts

This information is not available at this time.  An update will 
be provided via addendum if it becomes available.

83

Item 22 "Work Order Data" includes very useful information 
about maintenance activities perform on Revenue Vehicles 
including hours and quantities. In order to assist bidders in 
accurately pricing maintenance costs, could the RTA please 
provide the rates associated with each work order.

The costs of vehicle repair and maintenance is included in 
the Fixed and Variable fees provided in the current 
delegated management contract. 

84

Section 5 (a) (3) of the draft Operations and Maintenance 
Agreement states that "RTA may increase or decrease the 
number of Revenue Service Hours by service mode by up to 
15% on an annual basis without impacting the modal Revenue 
Service Hour Rates." Over the potential 9 years of the contract 
duration, this means the number of Revenue Service Hours 
could be multiplied by more than 3 compared to the existing 
level, without any adjustment to the Annual Service Payment for 
fixed costs and Revenue Service Hour Rates. We respectfully 
request the 15% threshold to be determined as an increase or 
decrease of the number of Revenue Service Hours compared to 
the number of hours stated in the RFP, instead of a comparison 
with the number of Revenue Service Hours operated over the 
previous year.

The Draft Operations and Maintenance Agreement will be 
amended to allow an increase or decrease of 15% on an 
annual basis, not to exceed 45% of year 1 level, cumulative 
in either direction, over 9 years.

85
Could RTA please provide details (model, quantities, age, etc.) 
on the Non-Revenue Vehicles for relief and other services 
currently being provided by the incumbent?

Information on non-revenue vehicles is provided at 
driveRTAforward.com. None are presently provided by the 
vendor. 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/qld4boxdszejroi/Question%2078.xlsx?dl=0


86

Section 11 (e) from the draft Operations and Maintenance 
Agreement states that "RTA will supply the Contractor with a 
sufficient number of Revenue Vehicles in order to provide at 
least a [five (5)] percent spare ratio." The FTA indicates that the 
"number of spare buses in the active fleet for grantees 
operating 50 or more revenue vehicles should not exceed 20% 
of the number of vehicles operated in maximum service," and 
recommends a minimum 10% spare ratio during peak hours. 
20% is the generally used spare ratio in the industry. The 5% 
referred to in Section 11 (e) seems very low. We respectfully 
request the spare ratio not to go below 10% during service peak 
hours.

See question and answer 242.  The Draft Operations and 
Maintenance Agreement will be amended to provide for a 
spare ratio of at least 10%.

87

Section 11 (q) from the draft Operations and Maintenance 
Agreement states that "RTA will be responsible for the cost of 
the replacement and/or rebuild or overhaul of engines and 
transmissions on the Revenue Vehicles at the end of their 
useful life." Useful life is defined as 300,000 miles, and the 
Revenue Vehicles are defined as any Vehicle that is owned or 
leased by the RTA and any ferry owned by Louisiana, which 
means this provision covers all fixed route buses, paratransit 
vehicles, streetcars and ferries. Could RTA please clarify for 
each revenue vehicle type which major component rebuilds or 
overhauls will be the responsibility of RTA?

To measure useful life of vehicles, Section 21(b) of the 
Contract has been revised to  track the requirements of 
FTA Circular 5010, Chap. IV, Section 4.f.  Those 
requirements are as follows:

Large, heavy duty transit buses: 12 years of service or 
500.000 miles
Small size, heavy duty transit buses: 10 years of service or 
350,000 miles
Medium size, medium duty transit buses: 7 years of service 
or 200,000 miles
Medium size, light duty transit buses: 5 years of service or 
150,000 miles
Light duty vehicles: 4 years of service or 100,000 miles.
Streetcar : 25 years of service
Passenger ferries:  25 years

88 Could the RTA please provide the current value of inventory, 
and the average inventory turnover rate? Please see attached.

89

Section 21 (b) from the draft Operations and Maintenance 
Agreement states that "the addition of Revenue Vehicles or 
changes in the Revenue Vehicle fleet mix does not constitute a 
Service Change." Please note that the introduction of a new 
electric vehicle fleet can have a material impact on the 
Contractor’s cost structure that are difficult to anticipate at this 
stage. Furthermore, proposers’ various assumptions regarding 
an evolving fleet mix may be difficult for the RTA to assess, 
given the pricing approach provided in the RFP (i.e. only the 
Revenue Service Hour Rate at the Base Date is requested for 
each of the service types, and will be revised each year with the 
escalation factor). As such, we respectfully request that the RTA 
includes a change in the Revenue Vehicle Fleet as part of its 
definition of an Allowable Service Change.

Section 21(b) of the Draft Operations and Maintenance 
Agreement will not be adjusted.

90
Could RTA please provide a listing of all auto liability and 
workers compensation claims related to vehicle accidents and 
employee injuries, respectively for the last 24 months?

The contractor is not responsible for providing auto liability 
coverage for Authority vehicles, however vehicle accident 
history from 2015 through mid-2018 is provided at 
driveRTAforward.com. Data regarding on-the-job for the 
past 36-months (through mid-2018) can be found here.

91

Please provide the RTA Transit Asset Management Plan that 
has been approved in October 2018, including (but not limited 
to): - Major assets maintenance plans (switches, track sections, 
power stations, OCS sections, rolling stock, ferry boats...) - 
Planned overhauls for major equipment - Information related to 
high-value assets.

Transit Asset Management Plan uploaded to 
driveRTAforward.com on January 22, 2019

92

Could RTA please provide a work order data dump from the 
maintenance management system for all facility-related 
maintenance for the previous 24 months, including a description 
of maintenance activity performed (inspection, repair, etc.) with 
related labor costs, parts costs and potential subcontracting 
costs?

Please see attached.

https://www.dropbox.com/s/nwrc48lv9ezokxr/Question%2088.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/rlawyjzl3fqzaw2/AADDCHbjFIWTQ3I8t60Kzwbia?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/rlawyjzl3fqzaw2/AADDCHbjFIWTQ3I8t60Kzwbia?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/rlawyjzl3fqzaw2/AADDCHbjFIWTQ3I8t60Kzwbia?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/rlawyjzl3fqzaw2/AADDCHbjFIWTQ3I8t60Kzwbia?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/rlawyjzl3fqzaw2/AADDCHbjFIWTQ3I8t60Kzwbia?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/2qqjtqej417q01y/Question%2092.pdf?dl=0


93

Would RTA be willing to accept an irrevocable letter of credit in 
lieu of a performance bond for performance security? It provides 
the same type of liquidity and protections as a bond but may be 
less costly.

This request is under consideration by the RTA.  Any 
changes will be made via addendum.

94

In light of these additional data requests, would the RTA 
consider a modest extension to ensure all proposers have 
sufficient time to analyze new information provided? We believe 
this will improve the overall quality of the bids submitted to RTA.

Unfortunately due to the very tight timeline involved in this 
procurement, we will not be altering any of the dates 
published in the RFP.

95

In the event the current Contractor negotiates new 
compensation or benefits with union employees between the 
time of Contract award and Contract commencement, this could 
result in material increases to the new Contractor’s costs that 
are not reflected in its original pricing. Will RTA agree to 
compensate Contractor for any such cost increases?

None of the collective bargaining agreements will expire 
before 2020.

96

Employment Cost Index in Attachment F-1 is defined as Table 
6: Employment Cost Index for total compensation, for private 
industry workers, by bargaining status, census region, census 
divisions, and area, as published by the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics. That table includes many different data: per 
bargaining status (union vs. nonunion with a sub division per 
type of industry) and per region. Please indicate which index 
RTA is considering for the escalation factor.

Please refer to Part 9 of Attachment F-2, wherein Labor0 is 
the value of the Employment Cost Index for the West South 
Central division on the Base Date, to be determined by 
reference to the most recent available monthly data 
published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics for the relevant 
index at the Base Date.

97

While Sec. 9(q) states that Contractor has no obligation for the 
liabilities of the prior contractor to its employees, Sec. 12 of the 
13(c) Agreement has specific language regarding the successor-
employer’s obligations with respect to the assumption of 
compensation, benefits etc., and that no employees shall suffer 
any worsening of compensation and benefits by reason of 
transfer to a successor-employer. Accordingly, please confirm 
the following: (a) That the current Contractor is obligated to pay 
out all accrued vacation and sick leave to its employees as of 
the end of the current contract. (b) If current Contractor does not 
pay out liabilities (e.g., sick and vacation leave) to its 
employees, then pursuant to Sec. 9(b) of the draft Contract, the 
Regional Transit Authority will indemnify new Contractor for any 
claims brought against new Contractor under the 13(c) 
Agreement with respect to liabilities of the prior contractor. (c) 
Please confirm that the current Contractor is not providing any 
benefits to its employees represented by a CBA that are not 
described in the CBA or otherwise disclosed in the data room.

(a) The current contractor is required to pay out accrued 
sick leave and vacation; (b) the RTA will compensate the 
Contractor for any accrued sick leave and vacation costs of 
the prior contractor not properly paid; and (c) additional 
benefits beyond the collective bargaining agreements do 
apply for those employees previously employed by TMSEL 
(pre-Transdev). See question 216.

98

Would the RTA please consider deleting the requirement for 
Errors and Omission/Professional Liability Insurance. Such 
insurance is not applicable to type of work contemplated by the 
RFP. The Contractor does not have exposure that the insurance 
marketplace would consider to require “professional liability” and 
“errors and omissions” coverage – therefore this a requirement 
that adds cost and brings no benefit. Such insurance typically 
applies to companies providing technical expertise, such as 
architects or engineering firms.

See revisions to contract section 27, coming via addendum.

99

Would the RTA consider lowering the amount of the 
Performance Bond from 25% of the total contract price to 10% 
of the total contract price. 25% is too high and not market, and a 
lower bond requirement will result in better value for money.

Section 28 of the Agreement requires a performance bond 
equivalent to 25% of the cost of service for the then 
contract year, not of the total contract price.  An addendum 
will be issued to delete the language that excludes capital 
costs.



100

To the extent RTA is providing or directing Contractor to use 
specific systems and software (e.g., Clever Device System), 
then will RTA agree to indemnify Contractor for infringement 
claims arising out of such use?

The RTA will not provide an indemnification to the 
Contractor.  However, where appropriate, the RTA will 
negotiate sublicense agreements to provide for the 
Contractor’s use of systems and software.  For example, 
the RTA will negotiate an amendment of the Clever Device 
End User Software License Agreement to clarify the 
Contractor’s sublicense.

101

Section 13 (c) (4) from the draft Operations and Maintenance 
Agreement states that the "Regional Transit Authority may, in its 
discretion, participate" in the cost of capital Equipment 
replacement or repair exceeding $25,000 (covering equipment, 
materials, and labor). Could the Regional Transit Authority 
clarify whether the Contractor would be responsible for the first 
$25,000, or the RTA - provided the Contractor has complied 
with the applicable manufacturer's preventive maintenance 
schedule and is not responsible for such replacement or repair - 
would cover the full cost of such replacement or repair?

The Contractor would be responsible for payment of the 
first $25,000 and the RTA would be responsible for those 
costs over $25,000 unless there were a finding that the 
Contractor failed to comply with the applicable 
manufacturer’s preventive maintenance schedule or the 
need for the replacement or repair was due to an act or 
omission of the Contractor.  In the case of such a failure, 
act or omission, the Contractor would be fully responsible 
for the repair or replacement costs. 

102 Could the RTA please provide details on facilities and 
equipment existing warranties?

Existing equipment is out of warranty; however, the RTA is 
expecting delivery of 8 new 40' buses by the end of August.

103

Since the LDs and Incentives are based on route level 
performance, could the RTA provide route level OTP data for 
Q3 and Q4 2018 by route from the system the RTA expects the 
Contractor to use (Clever Devices/ Clever Reports)?

Please see attached.

104
As part of the NTD process, is the Contractor responsible for 
providing data to RTA or is the Contractor also expected to 
enter the data into the NTD website?

The contractor will be responsible for reporting data to the 
RTA. RTA staff will enter data into the NTD database, with 
the exception of minor incident data as provided in Section 
23(b)(15)(C).

105
As part of the NTD process the contractor is responsible for cost 
of the NTD report audit, could the RTA provide previous 
invoices for this cost?

The RTA currently pays for the NTD Agreed Upon 
Procedures audit through its Third-Party accounting 
contract, therefore there is no invoice from the RTA to the 
contractor. The cost to the RTA for this service is 
approximately $16,000 per year.

106 Can the RTA provide the current trip sampling plan? Please see attached.

107 Has Clever Devices data been certified by the FTA for NTD 
sampling purposes?

Clever Devices data has not been certified by the FTA for 
NTD sampling purposes within the RTA.  Clever Devices 
can be certified by the FTA through proper validation of 
data. Clever Devices can assist the Authority and its vendor 
with this process. 

108
Could the RTA provide the final Trapeze scheduling data 
(TSDE feeds) provided to Clever Devices for the May and 
September picks of 2018 and January 2019 if available?

See response to question 77. 

109

Could the RTA provide a narrative of any fixed route service 
changes that have taken place since the May 2018 Pick, 
including their impact if any on operator need, hours and miles 
impacted?

As described in the 2019 Adopted Budget, the 2019 
baseline budget proposes a 3.4% increase in bus hours 
(measured as gate-to-gate hours), compared to the 2018 
budget. This reflects bus service increases made in 
September 2018, including extending the 39-Tulane line 
and adding overnight service on the 16-Claiborne line.

110

Attachment F-2 defines an escalation factor including an 
Employment Cost Index (ECI) published by the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics (BLS). There are several ECI published by the BLS by 
bargaining status or region. We respectfully request that the 
Employment Cost Index definition (item 22) refers to "Table 6: 
Employment Cost Index for total compensation, for private 
industry workers, by bargaining status, census region and 
division, and metropolitan area status, Union - Service-providing 
industries" to be used.

Please refer to Part 9 of Attachment F-2, wherein Labor0 is 
the value of the Employment Cost Index for the West South 
Central division on the Base Date, to be determined by 
reference to the most recent available monthly data 
published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics for the relevant 
index at the Base Date.

https://www.dropbox.com/sh/7ygo0or22ofcubi/AADNNrhb6Jd-uL2jeteZ2ydpa?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/7ygo0or22ofcubi/AADNNrhb6Jd-uL2jeteZ2ydpa?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/wcqtb7ltmn3tfhi/Question%20103.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/0sidvyhgbgfx25q/AACLxCyy3F-5hPevKeZGV7Jwa?dl=0


111

Attachment F-2 defines an escalation factor including a 
Consumer Price Index. Over the last decade this CPI-U has 
experienced some erratic fluctuations (e.g. -0.37% between 
2014 and 2015). The compound annual growth rate over the 
last decade has been 1.37%. On the other hand, transit 
contractors typically see annual cost increases of approximately 
2.5-3.0%. CPI-U fluctuations are notably driven by fuel and 
energy costs, which influence the “basket of goods” used to 
calculate indexation. This “basket of goods,” however, is not a 
fair representation of a transit contractor’s costs. We 
respectfully request that the RTA includes a floor on the CPI-U 
yearly change, amounting to 2.50%. This will limit the 
Contractor's risk exposure and result in better value for money 
for the RTA.

RTA will not consider a floor adjustment to the escalation 
factor. RTA will amend Section 9 of Attachment F-2, and 
allow for Proposers to bid different weightings between the 
Employment Cost Index and Consumer Price Index. The 
weighting allocated to both the Consumer Price Index and 
Employment Cost Index cannot be less than 20%, and the 
sum of which must equal to 100%.

112

We understand that the RTA plans to introduce electric vehicles 
to replace its existing diesel fixed route fleet. Could the RTA 
please confirm that it will be responsible for the replacement 
and installation of the lithium titanate batteries on the electric 
vehicles after the expiration of the warranty period?

The Contractor will be responsible for the cost of any 
necessary replacement of lithium titanate batteries at the 
end of their useful life (or earlier if determined necessary by 
RTA).  Please note that the replacement is not directly tied 
to the expiration of the warranty period for the batteries.

113

We understand from Item 20 - Fleet Replacement Schedule that 
it is expected that all fixed route buses will be electric by 2030. 
Could the RTA please confirm that vehicles purchases from 
2019 will be electric, and provide more information on the 
expected manufacturer and vehicle type selected?

In 2018 the RTA received an FTA grant for an addition 17 
Bio-Diesel buses which have not yet been procured. It is the 
Authority's expectation that vehicle purchases after this 
group of 17 will be electric. Vehicle manufacturer will be 
selected through an open solicitation. 

114

Attachment F-1 Table 5 – Annual Utility Consumption Target 
includes some figures which do not match with the description 
line (e.g.: Diesel Fuel is supposed to be a mile per gallon figure 
(mpg) and it is showing a 2,000,000 figure which we understand 
is the number of gallons per year target). Also we would 
recommend defining a mile per gallon and kWh per mile target, 
so the comparison with the actual utility consumption still works 
after a service change.

(i) RTA intends to revise the unit labels for Diesel Fuel and 
Gasoline, respectively in Table 5 of Attachment F-2, to be 
"gallons" instead of "mpg".
(ii) RTA intends to add to Table 5 of Attachment F-2, and 
provide to Proposers the Annual Utility Consumption Target  
for Diesel Fuel, Traction Power, and Gasoline in mpg, and 
kWh per mile respectively.

115

Attachment F-1 Table 5 – Annual Utility Consumption Target 
defines a traction power consumption target. With the 
introduction of electric vehicles to replace the existing diesel 
fixed route vehicles, we respectfully request the RTA to 
consider the introduction of a specific traction power 
consumption target that will be determined with the Contractor 
considering the specifications of the electric vehicles that will be 
purchased by the RTA.

The Contract has been revised to specify RTA’s right to set 
new utility consumption targets, following negotiation with 
the Contractor, in the event that the percentage of electric 
vehicles in RTA’s fixed route bus fleet exceeds 10 percent 
of the entire fixed route bus fleet.

116
Page 13, Section 4.1.5. Proposal Security – Would the RTA 
accept a bid bond as proposal security in lieu of a letter of 
credit?

See response to question 69

117

Sec. 27 Insurance (a)(4) Errors and Omissions/Professional 
Liability – Please clarify RTA’s rationale for the professional 
liability coverage. Our company carries $5M in professional 
liability coverage as is standard for the industry. As contractors 
will have no exposure to this type of loss based on this 
contract’s operations, would RTA please consider removing this 
requirement or accept the $5,000,000 level of coverage?

See response to question 98.

118 What are the hours and days of operation for each service?
Please see current system maps and frequency table at 
driveRTAforward.com; information on Paratransit and Ferry 
Service is available at norta.com.

119 Please provide revenue, deadhead, total hours, and miles for 
the last 3 years, by route or type of service. See question 21.

120 Please provide the daily weekday, Saturday, and Sunday 
revenue hours for each service.

Please see current system service schedule at 
driveRTAforward.com; information on Paratransit and Ferry 
Service is available at norta.com.

121 Please provide the number of peak vehicles during weekday, 
Saturday, and Sunday for each service Please see question 22.



122

Paratransit Services – Please provide detailed trip data for an 
average one-month period including:  pickup and drop-off 
addresses and times, number of passengers, miles, wheelchair 
vs. ambulatory, trip time, and trip miles.

See response to question 78.

123
Paratransit Services – Please confirm if computation of revenue 
hours starts at the first pickup even if the first pickup is a no 
show.

Confirmed. Proposers shall note that "Revenue Service" 
per Section 1 (39) of the O&M Agreement, is defined as 
available to carry fare paying passengers.

124 Would RTA be willing to make the option periods at mutual 
acceptance? No.

125

Per RFP Section 4.3.1, the proposer is required to provide 
written rationale to support the Revenue Service Hour Rates 
and Annual Payment prices. Is there a specific form or format 
for these responses?

There is no specific form or format for these responses. The 
requirement as stated in Section 4.3.1 of the RFP, intends 
for Proposers to document and justify the reasonableness 
in the Revenue Service Hour Rates and Annual Service 
Payment Prices. An evaluator should be able to understand 
the logic and key assumptions behind the build-up of these 
amounts that form the Proposers' Financial Submission.

126
Per Attachment E, Living Wage is required. Please provide the 
current living wage as well as a projection of the Living wage 
during the term of the contract.

See City of New Orleans website: 
https://www.nola.gov/economic-development/workforce-
development/living-wage/

127 What is the current rate paid to the contractor for the existing 
service? Please see question 17.

128 How much was paid to the incumbent for each of the last 3 
years? Three years of vendor payment history can be found here.

129

Please provide the current list of employees with seniority and 
pay for Operators, Bus and Streetcar, on the Extra Board at 
each facility. Please also provide information on the current 
amount of standby/protection time/operators used. Please 
include any vacancies.

Please see question 81

130
Please provide the current list of employees with seniority and 
pay for employees in the maintenance department for each 
mode of service.

Please see question 81

131 Please provide detail of current benefits offered to employees 
(medical, dental, retirement, etc.) and current participation rates. Please see questions 11 and 13.

132
Please provide the total number, seniority status for all 
operators, staff, and mechanics currently employed by the 
existing contractor?

Please see question 81 and 2018 seniority information 
posted to driveRTAforward.com.

133 Please provide CBA (if applicable), including any applicable 
amendments and MOUs for all groups of union employees. All information is provided at driveRTAforward.com.

134

In Attachment F-2, there are formulas for fuel and utility 
adjustments.  Per the draft contract, page 14 Section 2e 
Regional Transit Authority Duties, the RTA pays for fuel and 
utility costs for revenue vehicles and facilities. Will the RTA 
continue to pay fuel with the new term for revenue vehicles?

See response to Question 27.   It is the intent of the RTA to 
pay for fuel and utility costs for Revenue Vehicles and 
Facilities, under the Operations & Maintenance Agreement. 
The Annual Utility Consumption Adjustment in Attachment F-
2 is applied on the basis of comparing actual consumption 
against the target consumption levels set out in Table 5 of 
Attachment F-2. Any adjustments using the formulas set out 
in Table 7, 8 and 9 of Attachment F-2, will either be an 
addition OR subtraction to the relevant Monthly Service 
Payment due to the Contractor. 

135 Is the RTA or the contractor responsible for fuel costs for the 
RTA provided Non-Revenue vehicles?

The RTA directly pays for fuel in both Revenue and Non-
Revenue Vehicles. 

136 What is the driver starting wage?

The driver starting wage is determined by the vendor and 
CBAs, but cannot be less than the living wage prescribed 
by the City of New Orleans. The Draft Operations and 
Maintenance contract requires that vendors honor existing 
wages of employees.

137 What is the driver average wage? Please see attached.

138 Please provide an organizational chart of existing contractor 
employees. All information is provided at driveRTAforward.com.

139
Please provide detail of current benefits offered to employees 
(medical, dental, retirement, etc.) and the current participation 
rates.

Please see questions 11 and 13.

https://www.nola.gov/economic-development/workforce-development/living-wage/
https://www.nola.gov/economic-development/workforce-development/living-wage/
https://www.nola.gov/economic-development/workforce-development/living-wage/
https://www.dropbox.com/s/ajr1j1g53d0ws1f/3%20Year%20Vendor%20Payment%20History.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/rkralhc6kne1p8j/Question%20137.pdf?dl=0


140

49 U.S.C. 5333(b) under the Federal Transit Act (also referred 
to commonly as "13c") -  Please confirm that there are no 
outstanding employer liabilities that would carry over from the 
current contract to the new Contractor that need to be 
accounted for.  As an example, in some cases, there are under-
funded pension programs that cause a financial concern.

See response to question 97.  In addition, as noted in the 
response to question 14, the current retirement plan is a 
401(k) plan. 

141 Will the new contractor have any liability for the defined pension 
program the retired or existing employees? No.

142

Please provide a listing of any liquidated damages charged or 
incentives earned over the past 12 months.  Please clarify if the 
liquidated damages listed in the RFP differ from the current 
contract.

No liquidated damages have been assessed nor have 
incentives been earned under the existing contract. The 
proposed damages and incentives in the RFP are different 
from those contained in the existing contract. 

143
Would the RTA consider allowing the contract incentives to be 
accumulated and or counted towards revenue for the 
contractor?

No.

144

Would the RTA consider waiving disincentives for a 1-year 
period to allow for a consultative partnership to develop with a 
new provider? Adjustments throughout the first year may need 
to be made to optimize the service delivery.

No, see response to question 60.

145
Does the RTA have any requirements regarding support 
vehicles (type, number, age limit, fuel type)? How many are 
currently being supplied by the contractor?

The vendor will not be required to provide support vehicle. 
None are presently provided by the vendor. 

146 Please provide the estimated replacement date for vehicles. Please see question 31.

147
Paratransit Services – Please provide the current call volume, 
broken down by weekday, Saturday, and Sunday to include 
hourly levels if possible.

Please see question 24

148 Please provide the full location of each timepoint/endpoint 
abbreviation used in the Bus Blocks and Rail Blocks by route.

The abbreviations in the bus blocks and rail block represent 
the beginning point and end point of each line. 

149

Individual worksheets in the Bus Block and Rail Block Excel files 
are protected, some requiring a password. Please either provide 
the password, or unprotect the worksheets and re-post them to 
the website.

See response to Question 23.

150

Review of the Bus Blocks and Rail Blocks seems to indicate that 
each start and end point shown is a revenue timepoint, not the 
garage or streetcar facility (pending the answer to the 
abbreviation question). If true, these documents present 
Revenue Hours only, and contractors are unable to forecast 
Platform Hours. Please provide each start and end point.

The Contractor will be compensated on the basis of 
Revenue Service Hour volume.

151

Please provide the current Bus Operator and Streetcar Operator 
Run Pick in detail, as well as any summary costing reports. 
While we understand that this could be considered a work 
product of the current Contractor, we believe this should be 
public information on two fronts. First, the current  contracting 
format has the Contractor acting in part as the Public Body, 
making the information public. Second, the incumbent 
Contractor has access to this information, which could lead to 
either an unfair advantage or at least the perception of an unfair 
advantage.

Please see question 77.

152

Since the RTA operates multiple bus garages, please provide 
the bus garage or carbarn assignment for each route. If routes 
operate from multiple garages to reduce deadhead, please 
identify the individual blocks which operate from each garage.

Presently all fixed route service and rail service operates 
from the Canal Street facility, Paratransit service is 
operated from the New Orleans East facility (which has 
additional capacity). However, this is subject to change 
based on the selected contractor's service plans. 

153 Are any bus routes interlined? Please see question 77.
154 Are any streetcar routes interlined? Please see question 77.

155 What onboard hardware would be required? (CAD AVL, 
passenger counters, etc.) See responses to questions 42-46 and 68.

156
What is the fleet makeup? Please provide the number of 
streetcars, number of paratransit vehicles, number of fixed route 
vehicles, and number of ferries.

Revenue Vehicle Inventories can be found on 
driveRTAforward.com. Please see attached for information 
on ferries.

https://www.dropbox.com/s/duc2z82o8nm0x0c/Question%20156.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/duc2z82o8nm0x0c/Question%20156.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/duc2z82o8nm0x0c/Question%20156.pdf?dl=0


157

Describe in greater detail the current technology used for: 
Paratransit scheduling and dispatch, Fixed route CAD/AVL, 
tools used for dispatching Ferries and Streetcars, and any 
electronic fare collection tools in use.

See responses to questions 42-46.

158 Is NORTA providing any ADA scheduling technology or is this 
the responsibility of the successful bidder? RTA is providing Trapeze for this purpose. 

159 How many ADA vehicles are in your fleet? Revenue Vehicle Inventories can be found on 
driveRTAforward.com. 

160 How many computer workstations does the ADA group currently 
use?

Computers are the property of the RTA and will remain in 
place. 

161
Will GoMobile be available if TransDev is not the successful 
bidder? Is the successful bidder to provide electronic fare 
collection technology?

The RTA has a licensing agreement with Transdev for the 
continued use of GoMobile; however, the successful bidder 
will be required to provide comparable technology. 

162 How many mobile ticket validators does TransDev have 
installed on the NORTA fleet?

Transdev has no equipment installed on the RTA fleet. The 
RTA has mobile ticket validators on all fixed-route buses 
and streetcars

163 What is the make and model of the on-board mobile ticket 
validators? See responses to questions 42-46.

164 Can the contractor propose a new CAD AVL system that can be 
used across all modes of transportation? No.

165

Would the RTA either provide historical records on facility 
maintenance costs with the existing contractor or consider 
allowing these maintenance costs to be a pass-through 
expense?

Please see question 92.

166 Will the RTA allow alternative bids? No.

167

Will the RTA allow bidders to ask follow-up questions to the 
Q&A responses? Sometimes points of clarity are required in 
order to minimize risk in the bid responses. Please confirm 
answers to follow-up questions would be provided no less than 
three weeks prior to the due date for proposals.

Proposers may ask follow-up questions, but the RTA is not 
obligated to answer questions received after the question 
due date.  Also, see response to question 94.

168 What shop tools are owned by the RTA and what shop 
equipment will needed to be budgeted for by the contractor? All shop equipment is owned by the RTA.

169

Effective 2014, the Affordable Health Care Act will incur 
significant costs to contractors in the area of personnel benefits. 
Since its signing into law in 2010, the Act has had little impact 
on bid pricing, and many contractors have chosen to disregard 
the cost implications of this act in price proposals. While we 
consistently budget these costs in our operations, our company 
has been challenged in procurements when competing against 
those companies whose price has been artificially lowered by 
failure to comply with the provisions of this law. In an effort to 
ensure compliance with the Affordable Health Care Act, we 
respectfully request the RTA takes one of the following actions: 
Mandate that all bidders comply (in both technical and price 
proposals) with the provisions of this act effective January 2014, 
and submit official certification of compliance; and / or Provide 
benchmark costs per employee for healthcare obtained through 
the Affordable Health Care Act; thus ensuring that all bidders 
are using the same per person costs when projecting 
participation levels and overall cost relative to benefits; or 
Provide adequate assurances that RTA will open contract 
negotiations at the time that this Act impacts employers (and not 
before), thus allowing bidders to submit price proposals based 
on the current costs of doing business, with this Act not yet set 
into law.

See response to question 41.



170

Pursuant to CFR 49, 26.85, will RTA accept a DBE good faith 
effort that includes DBEs certified in other states, contingent 
upon their successful completion of the interstate certification 
process?

 “The RTA may accept, as one means of demonstrating 
good faith efforts towards achieving the DBE contract goal 
among others expressed in Appendix A to 49 C.F.R. Part 
26, commitments to use DBE’s certified in other states, 
contingent upon their successful completion of the 
interstate certification process.  Such commitments must be 
described on DBE Form 1 – Contract Participation and DBE 
Commitment with the firm(s) not-yet certified as DBE in 
Louisiana labeled as “non-DBE” in Column G.  Similarly, the 
firm(s) not-yet certified as DBE in Louisiana should not be 
described as DBE participants on DBE Form 4 – DBE 
Participation Plan.  Rather, documentation reflecting that 
the firm is in the process of receiving DBE certification in 
Louisiana must be submitted in accordance with the 
instruction of DBE Form 3 – Documentation of Good Faith 
Efforts.  The RTA will evaluate whether such documentation 
meets the good faith efforts requirement of 49 C.F.R. Part 
26, et seq.  Prior to award, the selected Contractor must 
provide a revised DBE Form 1 – Contract Participation and 
DBE Commitment, as well as DBE Form 4 – DBE 
Participation Plan, that reflects the status of such firms as 
being DBE certified in Louisiana.”

171 Is there a list of firms that the RTA would like vendors to work 
with to achieve the DBE goal of this procurement?

Please see question 76. There are no preferred vendors of 
the RTA.

172
Has service experienced problems due to driver shortages? If 
so, please provide any information available relating to this 
issue.

As with other US transit properties, the RTA has 
occasionally faced challenges with service delivery due to 
driver availability.

173 What are the top three goals NORTA would like to achieve with 
the start of this new contract?

See RFP Purpose and Background section and evaluation 
criteria.

174

Are the background check and employee screening procedures 
outlined in this RFP consistent with current practice? It not, 
please provide information regarding what has changed. Please 
also indicate when the most recent audit of these procedures 
occurred.

The background check and employee screening procedures 
outlined in the RFP are consistent with the guidelines of the 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission’s guidelines.  
To the extent that those guidelines have evolved, the 
procedures in the RFP reflect that evolution.

175

Can the cost of major repairs be treated as a passthrough 
expense to the RTA? If not, please provide history of 
maintenance costs for each mode of service for budgetary 
purposes.

No.

176 Please provide the revenue service hour definition for each of 
the different services contemplated in the RFP. See response to question 20.

177

Please clarify if billable time continues past scheduled hours on 
the last trip due to exterior factors (traffic, weather delays, etc.) 
beyond the control of the contractor, or if the scheduled hours 
remain the sole billable time.

See response to question 25.

178

Is the contractor responsible for eligibility? Who certifies riders 
for the paratransit services? If a Contractor responsibility, 
please describe the responsibilities involved with this item. Is 
conditional eligibility implemented?

Please see question 40.

179
Please specify the number of telephone lines required and 
specify the kind of data lines (T-1, TDD, dial-up, etc.) required, if 
any.

Please see question 67.  No additional lines are required.

180

Please provide a listing of accidents reported to NORTA by the 
current contractor with details (description, route, preventability, 
date, DOT reportable, etc.) regarding the accident for the last 
three years.

Vehicle accident history from 2015 through mid-2018 are 
provided at driveRTAforward.com.

181

Assignments that integrate ferry, streetcar, bus, and paratransit 
into a single contract are unusual. Therefore, we understand 
that Section 4.2.2 of the RFP, which requests a list of “all similar 
assignments” to mean that proposers should demonstrate 
experience in each of the four transit modes that will be used for 
this operation – but not necessarily under a single contract. Is 
this correct?

Assignments and qualifications for each of the modes do 
not have to be under a single contract to be considered. 
Proposers need not have   similar assignments or 
experience with all four modes.



182

Certain positions in a transit organization require a skill set that 
is transversal to other industries. May the Customer Service 
Manager role include 5 years of transit management experience 
OR 5 years of relevant experience, including at least 2 years of 
transit management experience?

No.

183

Could proposers separate the Operations and Safety Manager 
position into two key personnel: 1) Operations Manager and 2) 
Safety and Security Manager? This would be a total of six key 
personnel. There are two main reasons for our request to split 
these two positions. First is the essential nature of the safety 
function and the need to combine that function with security 
expertise. Second is the role of safety as an oversight function 
for the entire organization, including operations, maintenance, 
and all other aspects of the organization. This larger oversight 
may not be captured if the safety function is combined with only 
operations. 

No.

184

Section 4.1.6 states that proposers may make exceptions to this 
RFP but that exceptions may result in a non-compliant proposal. 
Section 5.2 states “the RTA will enter into contract negotiations 
with the highest rank proposer.” There will inevitably be issues 
of discussion that through mutual negotiation will result in 
agreement. Will the RTA accept identification of issues for 
negotiation without qualifying them as exceptions that could 
deem the proposal non-compliant?

No. See section 4.1.6 in its entirety.

185 Please clarify that tabs separating sections in Volume 2 do not 
count towards the 50-page limit. See response to question 74.

186 Who will be the voting members of the evaluation committee? RTA will not be disclosing this information.

187 What role will Deloitte or other outside advisors play in 
evaluating proposals?

The RTA has secured the services of outside technical and 
legal advisors to assist the Authority in the procurement. 
process.

188 May proposers submit selected charts and graphs on pages of 
11x17 or 8 ½x14 to allow evaluators to more easily read them?

Yes, for only graphs and charts, if bound.  These will count 
toward page count

189 Are appendices outside the 50-page limit acceptable for Volume 
2? See response to question 74.

190

May “samples of any forms or documents used” for the “hiring, 
training, promoting, and retaining employees, evaluating and 
disciplining employees to maintain and grow a quality and 
diverse workforce” (Section 4.2.4 of the RFP) be included as 
appendices to Volume 2 outside the 50-page limit?

See response to question 74.

191
May proposers submit a detailed organizational chart and 
transition plan as appendices to Volume 2 outside the 50-page 
limit?

See response to question 74.

192 May proposers submit detailed resumes for key personnel as 
appendices to Volume 2 outside the 50-page limit? See response to question 74.

193 May graphics include font other than 12-point? Yes, as long as the font is legible.

194 May proposers ask follow-up questions and/or clarifications on 
answers provided by the RTA on February 1? See response to question 167.

195

May proposers submit manuals, such as safety and 
maintenance manuals, (including those covered under the 
scope of Volume 2) as appendices to Volume 2 outside the 50-
page limit?

See response to question 74.

196
To save paper, may proposers submit manuals that are part of 
Volume 1 and 2 manuals on USB keys, rather than as printed 
hard copies?

No.

197
To protect commercial confidentiality, may proposers submit 
proposer and parent company financials under separate cover 
(reference to RFP section 4.1.7)?

See RFP section 6.19 for information on public records and 
redaction.

198
To save paper, may proposers submit proposer and parent 
company financials on a USB key, rather than as printed hard 
copies (reference to RFP section 4.1.7)?

No.



199

Section 4.1.5 states that the selected proposer will not have its 
proposal security returned within 5 business days. Will the 
proposal security ever be returned to the selected proposer? If 
so, when?

Yes, after successful contract execution, and receipt of 
performance security.

200

The RTA may reject any Proposal that does not include the 
proposal security in the form required in Appendix 8 of the RFP. 
Will the RTA accept a bid bond instead of a Letter of Credit in 
the amount of $100,000?

See response to question 69.

201

Section 4.1.2 of the RFP states that all proposers must 
“possess the needed licenses and certifications”. Please 
confirm that as a pass/fail requirement, all necessary licenses 
and certifications to operate this service must be provided with 
the proposal submission on March 15?

Section 4.1.2 will be updated via addendum.

202
Will the proposers’ price proposals in Volume 3 be kept sealed 
and unopened until evaluations of Volumes 1 and 2 are 
completed?

See section 5.1.3.1 - Volume 3 will need to be opened 
during pre-qualifications review..

203
Could point 1 of Section 4.2.6 in the RFP be combined with 
Section 4.2.4 to allow proposers to describe their organizational 
structures in a single part of their proposals?

No.

204

In Section 4.2.6 of the RFP, what is the distinction between 
approach to “day-to-day management of the transit modes to 
achieve effective service delivery” (point 2) and “approach to 
service operations… to achieve service delivery targets” (point 
4)? Can these two requirements be combined in the proposer’s 
response?

No.

205

In Section 4.2.6 of the RFP, point 6 overlaps with the part of 
point 12 that asks proposers to “describe your approach to 
scheduling”. Will the RTA consider combining these two points 
in the RFP? This would leave the part of point 12 on the 
“method of operating a dispatch center.”

No.

206

The definitions for Revenue Service Hours in the RFP and draft 
contract are different from the existing delegated management 
contract. However, the Revenue Service Hours figures provided 
in table 2 on page 16 of the attachments to the draft contract 
and in cells G22:G25 in tab “Parameters” of the Price Form 
appear to be the same level as the budgeted 2019 revenue 
hours in the Adopted 2019 Budget, based on the existing 
definition (not the definition in the RFP). Please confirm the 
number of Revenue Service Hours that proposers should use in 
formulating their cost proposals.

The Revenue Service Hours which the proposers are to use 
in the Financial Submission, are set out in Table 2 of 
Attachment F-2 of the O&M Agreement.

207

In Attachment F-2 of the draft contract, Section 9: Escalation 
Factor weights labor and CPI inflation equally for future cost 
escalation. Given that labor costs are typically higher than 50% 
of transit Operations and Maintenance contracts in the United 
States, is it acceptable to propose different "WCPI" and WL" 
factors as part of a responder's proposal?

See answer to question 111.

208
Are proposers expected to honor the financial terms of the 
current labor agreements even if they exceed the escalation 
limits stated in Attachment F-2?

Yes.

209

Appendix 6 – Price Form allows proposers to input, on Sheet 1 
– ASP, in column F, lines 13-22 a different annual service 
payment for each year of the 9 possible contract years. These 
entries are then escalated at a set 2.5% escalation factor 
throughout the term for calculation of the NPV. Are proposers to 
enter values on Sheet 1 for years 1 through 9 in nominal terms, 
expressed in today’s dollars?

Correct.



210

Appendix 6 – Price Form – Sheet 3 Variable Payments does not 
allow for different year entry of variable Revenue Service Hour 
Rates, but rather takes the initial year rates and escalates them 
using the same set 2.5% escalation factor throughout the term 
of the contract. This does not allow any flexibility for proposers 
to adjust variable rates beyond or below the set 2.5% 
escalation. For example, variable rates may be influenced by 
performance improvement measures, a younger fleet age as 
vehicles are replaced, or quickly rising labor costs – this 
combination of factors can lead to costs changes that are 
different from general inflation rates. Would the RTA be open to 
allowing proposers to propose different annual variable 
payments in the same manner as is allowed on Sheet 1 for the 
ASP?

The RTA's intent to allow Proposers to enter one Revenue 
Service Hour Rate per mode of transit, for purposes of 
Financial Submission, is appropriately reflected in the RFP 
and the Price Form. Proposers shall note that per Section 
4.3.1 of the RFP, detailed rationale must be provided for the 
build-up of prices including the Revenue Service Hour 
Rates.

211

Sections 5 and 21 of the draft contract discuss when rates 
would be adjusted based on changes of more than 15% in 
Revenue Service Hours. To add clarity to these provisions, do 
you confirm that the calculation for the comparison is [(new 
Revenue Service Hours – Revenue Service Hours used to 
calculate existing rates)/Revenue Service Hours used to 
calculate existing rates]?

See response to question 84.

212

Can the RTA confirm that, in contrast to the existing delegated 
management contract, in which the RTA assumes liability for 
accidents over $25,000, the Contractor will take on all liability for 
all accidents in all modes under this new contract?

No. The contractor is responsible for the actions of the 
Contractor or their employees. The RTA maintains and will 
continue to maintain $25,000,000 in Automobile Liability 
and General Liability coverage. 

213

Section 1.2 of the RFP states that Transdev has “approximately 
550 employees at the RTA”. Documents in the online data room 
provide different figures, which also appear to be out-of-date or 
incomplete. Transdev records show that as of 1/16/19, 
Transdev has 804 employees in service to the RTA, including 
ferry. Can the RTA provide updated and complete figures for all 
proposers?

Please see attached.

214

Section 9.n of the draft contract requires that the successful 
proposer hire all current Transdev employees, except for senior 
Transdev staff and those hired by the RTA. Can the RTA clarify: 
How many existing Transdev employees will RTA hire? The 
function of each employee that the RTA will hire? Salaries and 
benefits for each employee that the RTA will hire? This is 
essential information for proposers to submit a reasonable price 
based on an adequate understanding of the scope of work. For 
purposes of transition planning, when the RTA will hire each 
employee? For purposes of transition planning, the process for 
the RTA to transition from the existing delegated management 
structure to the new hybrid management structure? 

Approximately 60 current employees of the delegated 
management vendor will be hired by the RTA; the average 
salary for this group is $70,000/year. All employees are 
considered administrative and will provide various functions 
for the operation of the Authority and oversight of the 
selected vendor. All employees will be hired by the RTA in 
advance of the September 1, 2019 effective date of this 
contract. 

215

Section 9.n of the draft contract states that senior Transdev 
employees are listed in Amendment 2 of the existing delegated 
management contract. However, Amendment 3 of the delegated 
management contract amended the senior management team. 
Please confirm that proposers should also consider Amendment 
3 of the existing delegated management contract.

Correct, the Third Amendment to the Transit Management 
Agreement renamed a Senior Manager position from "Chief 
Maintenance Officer" to "Director of Maintenance." The 
number of contract-required senior managers was not 
altered by the Third Amendment.

216

Does the hourly rate for employees given in the data room 
include the special retirement and retiree health benefits 
afforded former TMSEL employees (including many union 
employees – who therefore are paid higher rates than those in 
the CBAs provided online)?

See question 11. Additional information relative to the 
benefits provided to former-TMSEL employees will be 
provided as it is made available. 

217 How will the RTA evaluate reasonableness of transition costs, 
given that these costs are not included in the price evaluation?

See RFP section 5.1.4.1 and the update to section RFP 
section 4.2.5.  The description of the transition plan and 
price should be sufficiently detailed to allow for a review for 
reasonableness.

https://www.dropbox.com/s/ak8gk1xitff0da1/Question%20213.pdf?dl=0


218 What is the provision for adjusting utility consumption targets as 
service levels change?

RTA intends to revise Table 5 of Attachment F-2, to provide 
to Proposers the Annual Utility Consumption Target to 
provide the target rate for Diesel Fuel, Traction Power, and 
Gasoline in mpg, and kWh per mile respectively.

219
Please confirm that the units for diesel and gasoline are 
"gallons" instead of "mpg" (Page 17 of attachments to the draft 
contract).

RTA intends to revise the unit labels for Diesel Fuel and 
Gasoline, respectively in Table 5 of Attachment F-2, to be 
"gallons" instead of "mpg".
RTA additionally intends to revise Table 5 of Attachment F-
2, to provide to Proposers the Annual Utility Consumption 
Target to provide the target rate for Diesel Fuel, Traction 
Power, and Gasoline in mpg, and kWh per mile 
respectively.

220

All existing on-time performance reporting (including overall and 
route data) at the RTA is based on Transdev’s Shadow system 
rather than Clever Devices; Clever Devices continues to be 
calibrated to be used for reporting in the future. Based on 
Clever Devices data from July-December 2018, Transdev 
calculates the following ranges for on-time performance for bus 
and streetcar (following the standards in Sections 22.b.1.iv and 
22.b.2.v of the draft contract): $1.3 million (contract year 1 
standards) to $1.7 million (contract year 2+ standards) in annual 
Deductions. Multiple events every month that would have 
triggered Defaults under Section 40.g, based only on bus and 
streetcar on-time performance. 

It is the intent of the RTA, through this performance-based 
O&M contract, to procure a private sector partner capable 
of meeting the system and availability standards that are 
appropriate and sufficient to serving the New Orleans 
region. The thresholds for Incentives and Deductions under 
this O&M Agreement have been established using a 
combination of examining market standards from 
established jurisdictions across North America, and 
assessing historical performance of the system.

221
Given the continued work to calibrate Clever Devices for 
reporting on-time performance, will the RTA permit the 
negotiation of KPMs based on Clever Device data?

No.  See contract section 22c for contractor's defense 
toward KPIs.

222 What system will be used for collecting and reporting data on 
paratransit on-time performance? Trapeze

223 What system will be used for collecting and reporting data on 
ferry on-time performance?

Currently there is no automated system in place. RTA is 
evaluating options for collecting and reporting ferry 
performance. 

224

Given the provisions holding the Contractor responsible for 
farebox accuracy (Sections 16.c.2 and 22.b.15 of the draft 
contract for example), it is essential that fareboxes are in good 
working order. How old are the RTA’s fareboxes and what is 
their expected useful life? Can the RTA provide the replacement 
schedule for the fareboxes?

The average age of Genfare fareboxes and associated fare 
collection infrastructure is 9 years. The RTA has not defined 
the useful life of fareboxes and there is no current 
procurement in process for the replacement of fareboxes.

225
Please confirm that all liability insurance limits that are required 
can be met by any combination of primary and excess 
insurance.

Yes.

226
Please provide insurance coverage requirements for the 
streetcar operation. For example, is the RTA seeking liability 
insurance within 50 feet of the rail?

The contractor is responsible for obtaining general liability, 
automobile liability, etc. related to the activities of the 
contractor. 

227

In reference to Section 11.h.3 of the draft contract, Automobile 
Collision and Comprehensive Coverage at full replacement 
value is not available within the insurance industry. Please 
confirm that the RTA will accept the industry standard wording 
“The Service Provider agrees to maintain automobile coverage 
equal to the actual cash value of all revenue and non-revenue 
vehicles.”

Section 11(h)(3) of the Contract requires the Contractor to 
compensate the RTA  for the replacement cost of the 
vehicle if the vehicle is rejected by the RTA under that 
subsection during the first half of the vehicle’s useful life.  If 
the vehicle is rejected by the RTA in the second half of a 
vehicle’s useful life, the Contractor is required to 
compensate the RTA the greater of the straight line 
depreciation value or the amount of insurance proceeds.  In 
the event that the insurance proceeds for an event in the 
second half of a vehicle’s useful life are less than the 
straight line depreciation value of the vehicle, for whatever 
reason, the Contractor would be responsible to RTA for 
amounts equal to the straight line depreciation value.

228
In reference to Section 27.c.1 of the draft contract, please note 
that additional insured status is not available on Errors and 
Omissions/Professional Liability.

See response to question 98.



229

In reference to Section 25.5 of the draft contract, industry 
standard is to provide Notice of Cancellation within 30 days or 
10 Days for Non-payment. The current Cancellation language 
found on the standard ACCORD form is “Should any of the 
above described policies be cancelled before the expiration 
date thereof, notice will be delivered in accordance with the 
policy provisions”. In addition, the insurance carrier/broker will 
not agree to provide notices by certified or registered mail. 
Please confirm that RTA is open to amending the draft contract 
to the industry standard.

Section 27 of the contract will be updated via addendum.

230

Please provide insurance coverage requirements for the ferry 
operation. Specifically, the limits and conditions for the 
following: 1) Hull & machinery cover, 2) War cover, 3) P&I 4) 
COFR.

See revisions to Section 27 coming via addendum. Current 
insurance requirements are provided in the Blanket 
Bareboat Charter. 

231 Please provide loss runs for each of bus, streetcar, and 
paratransit for each of the last 5 years. Please see attached.

232

Section 14.b.2 of the draft contract states that the “The 
Contractor shall implement and comply with the Clever Device 
System Management and Operations Plan submitted with its 
proposal (p44)”. However, the description of the technical 
submission (Volumes 1 and 2) in the RFP does not appear to 
refer to such a Plan. Should proposers submit such a Plan as 
part of their proposals? If so, under which Volume? If the Plan is 
to be submitted as part of Volume 2, does it count towards the 
50-page limit?

A Data Collection O&M plan will be added to the list of 
plans and policies required.  Addendum to follow.

233

Section 3.c of the draft contract requires that the Contractor 
submit several plans and programs within 60 days of Notice to 
Proceed. Section 19.b.1 of the draft contract requires that the 
Contractor submit several of the same plans and programs 
within 20 days of Notice to Proceed. Which is correct?

Section 19.b.1 will be updated via addendum to  60 days 
from NTP

234

There are several apparent discrepancies between definitions of 
on-time and late trips in Section 1 of the draft contract: Ferry: An 
on-time trip “departs from a Time-Point no more than three (3) 
minutes before the published scheduled arrival time and no later 
than ten (10) minutes after the published scheduled departure 
time” (emphasis added). A late trip “arrives at a Time-Point later 
than ten (10) minutes after the published scheduled arrival time 
or departs later than fifteen (15) minutes after the published 
scheduled departure time”. This definition is slightly different 
than the on-time definition (15 minutes vs. 10 minutes). 
Currently, ferries do not have schedule arrival times, only 
scheduled departure times. Can the RTA confirm the definitions 
for on-time and late trips for ferries? If the RTA plans to add 
scheduled arrival times for ferries, can the RTA please provide 
draft schedules to allow proposers to assess and price the risk 
of Deductions according to those schedules? Bus and streetcar: 
a late trip “departs later than ten (10) minutes after the 
published scheduled departure time”. However, an on-time trip 
departs “no later than five (5) minutes after the published 
scheduled departure time”. Can the RTA confirm these 
definitions? ADA paratransit: A late trip is one in which “the 
Revenue Vehicles arrives at the pick-up location more than 
twenty-five (25) minutes after the scheduled pick-up time”. 
However, an on-time trip “departs from a scheduled pick-up 
location… no later than fifteen (15) minutes after the scheduled 
pick-up time”. Can the RTA confirm these definitions? New 
Orleans has 130 festivals each year and has scheduled billions 
of dollars in road and other infrastructure construction in coming 
years. Will these be considered excusable delays under Section 
22.c of the draft contract?

For non-ADA Paratransit services, the definition of “On-
Time” in Section 1(29) of the Contract will be revised to 
measures based on departure times.  For avoidance of 
doubt, the deduction in Section 22(b)(1) will be based on 
the definition of “On-Time” in Section 1 of the Contract.  The 
definition of “Late Trip” in Section 1(25) of the Contract will 
be revised to eliminate references to trips other than ADA 
Paratransit Trips.  Section 23(b)(5) of the Contract will be 
revised to include reporting requirements for late ADA 
Paratransit trips as part of the Contractor’s Monthly 
Performance Report.  Festivals and infrastructure 
construction would only be considered excusable delays 
under Section 22(c) of the Contract to the extent that the 
transportation-related challenges of the festival or 
construction cannot be reasonably anticipated. 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/70p7ry3des9l1oo/Blanket%20Bareboat%20Charter%20Agreements.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/70p7ry3des9l1oo/Blanket%20Bareboat%20Charter%20Agreements.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/70p7ry3des9l1oo/Blanket%20Bareboat%20Charter%20Agreements.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/cu8uucfk9xvgd4x/Question%20231.pdf?dl=0


235

Point 6 under Section 4.2.6 of the RFP seems to give the 
Contractor responsibility for scheduling. It requires a description 
of the proposer’s “approach – including staffing strategy – for 
service planning and scheduling”, including the approach to 
utilizing resources, IT systems, and data to optimize scheduling. 
However, Section 2.e of the draft contract states that the RTA is 
responsible for “planning transit and ADA paratransit services, 
scheduling of transit services [not including ADA paratransit 
services]”. Questions on these sections are:

-------------

236

Can the RTA please confirm our understanding that the 
Contractor has responsibility for service planning, service 
scheduling, and run-cutting and that the RTA will be responsible 
for long-term service planning?

No. The RTA will assume responsibility for service 
planning, scheduling, and long-term planning. Run-cutting 
will be the responsibility of the vendor.

237
If the Contractor is not responsible for scheduling, may the 
Contractor provide input into the recovery time built into the 
schedules?

It is anticipated that the vendor will work with RTA planning 
and scheduling cooperatively to ensure the RTA's 
scheduling expectations are reasonable. 

238

Who, the Contractor or the RTA, is responsible for the 
distribution of schedule data after the run-cuts (for example 
ensuring an accurate GTFS feed is properly placed on the RTA 
website and integrated into to the GoMobile 2.0 app)?

The RTA's planning and scheduling staff will be responsible 
for this activity. 

239
Can the RTA please define the following terms as they are used 
in the draft contract and RFP: service planning, scheduling, run-
cutting?

These terns shall be defined as used commonly in industry.

240 Who is responsible public outreach for route planning? The RTA in coordination with the vendor's marketing 
department.

241
If the RTA would like to move to headway management on 
some bus and streetcar routes, how would on-time performance 
be defined for the purposes of Deductions and Incentives?

The RTA expects the contractor to provide on time 
performance in conformance with published schedules.

242

The draft contract (Section 11.e) states that the RTA will 
maintain a spare ratio of at least 5 percent. However, the FTA 
recommends a 20 percent spare ratio for buses and paratransit 
vehicles, which would be more appropriate for maintaining the 
performance standards in this contract. The current spare ratio 
is 18 percent for buses. Further, different spare ratios are 
needed for: 35’ and 40’ buses, 60’ buses, Perley-Thomas 
Streetcars, Canal and Riverfront streetcars, Car ferries, 
Passenger ferries, Please confirm the spare ratios that will be 
used for fleet and service planning purposes for each of the 
bullet points above. 

See response to question 86.

243

Section 11.q.3 appears to apply to transit buses. What are the 
useful life thresholds, in miles, for paratransit vehicles and 
streetcar power traction motors? What is the threshold, in 
engine hours, for ferry vessels?

See response to question 87.

244

Section 11.7.f of the draft contract states that “The Contractor 
shall, at its sole expense, cause any such Vehicle damaged in 
any accident or otherwise to be repaired or replaced. In case of 
damage impairing the safe mechanical operation or proper 
appearance of the Vehicle, such replacement must be made 
immediately”. We understand: “Immediately” in this context to 
mean soon enough not to miss trips. “Replace” in this context to 
mean bringing a different vehicle into service, so as not to miss 
trips.  Could the RTA please confirm this understanding?

Correct.

245

The Ridership Revenue calculation is based in part on ridership 
data. What are the systems and methodology for collecting 
ridership data (including use of farebox data and Automatic 
Passenger Counts from Clever Devices)? Who (either the 
Contractor or RTA) has responsibility for collecting ridership 
data?

The RTA has responsibility for collecting ridership data.  
Methodology is under development.



246
Attachment F-1, definition 41: Service Interruption appears to 
contain several typographical errors that impede understanding. 
Could the RTA please revise?

RTA intends to revise the definition of Service Interruption 
to the following: Service Interruption. -- The term "Service 
Interruption" means any disruption of service caused by a 
mechanical failure which results in the removal and 
replacement of the Revenue Vehicle while in-service. 

247 What systems platform will be used for customer service 
tracking?

The system currently in place is LISTEN and it is a 
Transdev proprietary system. The RTA does not hold a 
license for LISTEN, and is exploring alternative options.

248

The GoMobile 2.0 app is not mentioned in the RFP or draft 
contract. Who is responsible for backend and frontend 
management of GoMobile 2.0? Or, is the Contractor responsible 
for providing a similar system of its own?

Please see question 161.

249

Will the Complaint Processing Procedure that the RTA will use 
(Attachment I of the draft contract), and which the Contractor 
must adhere to for complaint response and reporting purposes, 
be made available for proposers’ consideration in time for the 
March 15 submittal deadline? If not, on what basis should 
proposers plan for staffing complaint response responsibilities 
and adhering to those guidelines?

This is under development, will be finalized in conjunction 
with the contractor.

250
When will proposers be provided with the RTA’s Customer 
Service Guidelines mentioned in Attachment I of the draft 
contract?

This is under development, will be finalized in conjunction 
with the contractor.

251

Section 20.a of the draft contract states the RTA will be 
responsible for the “approval of marketing materials.” Section 
20.b states “the Contractor shall cooperate in the marketing and 
advertising related to” RTA services. Section 2.d.1 states that 
the Contractor duties include “marketing and advertising (at the 
director of the Regional Transit Authority).” Who is actually 
responsible for the development of creative marketing programs 
and materials: the RTA or the Contractor?

The contractor, under the supervision and subject to the 
approval of the RTA.

252 Does the Contractor or the RTA have responsibility for website 
maintenance? RTA

253

Section 10.e.1 of the draft contract states that “Information on 
detours shall be disseminated by the Contractor as directed by 
the Regional Transit Authority.” Will the RTA disseminate detour 
information via the RTA Call Center, social media, news media, 
and service alerts on the web/mobile/app? If so, through what 
channels is the Contractor expected to disseminate this 
information?

The contractor is responsible for marketing and call center 
operation, the RTA is responsible for dissemination of 
information to the public and the media. Service alerts and 
detours will be coordinated through both entities using the 
Authority's established digital platforms. The contractor is 
responsible for posting signage in association with planned 
or long-term detours from established routes. 

254

We understand that the Contractor will have no responsibility for 
designing, writing, or producing the Riders Guide, Rider 
Newsletters or Ride Alerts, schedule change summaries, or 
printed schedules (timetables). The Contractor’s responsibility is 
solely to distribute these materials on vehicles. Is this correct?

Contractor will be responsible for development of marketing 
material.

255

Will the RTA have responsibility for all management of charter 
sales, filming/photography, and pass sales? If so, what will the 
process be for coordinating with the Contractor to avoid service 
disruptions?

Yes. The process for coordination will be established in 
conjunction with the contractor, as preferred protocols may 
vary.



256

Deductions and Incentives are calculated monthly. However, the 
Incentive target in Section 22.b.9 of the draft contract refers to 
annual and quarterly targets: “Complaints decrease at least 
20.0% year-over-year, and decrease quarter-over-quarter.” For 
clarity, can the RTA please provide the equation that will be 
used to evaluate this monthly Incentive?

KPM (9) of Section 22 of the O&M Agreement clearly states 
the Incentive is to be applied per Contract Year. 

Should the (i) volume of customer complaints in a Contract 
Year [X] be at least 20% less than the volume in the 
preceding Contract Year [X-1]; AND should the (ii) volume 
of customer complaints be continuously decreasing on a 
quarterly basis (i.e. every three months), the Incentive for 
this KPM (9) would apply.

The Incentive would be eligible to be countered against 
Deductions in the first Monthly Service Payment of the 
following Contract Year [X+1].

257 Will the Contractor have access to customer feedback data or 
data from RTA-conducted surveys?

As the operator of the call center, the Contractor will be 
collecting a large portion of customer feedback data. Data 
from RTA-conducted surveys will be provided to the 
contractor in aggregated report form. 

258

Preventative maintenance frequencies in section 11.i of the 
draft contract appear to relate only to buses. Is this so? If so, 
what are required frequencies for streetcars, ferries, and 
paratransit vehicles?

Please see attached for current preventative maintenance 
frequencies. 

259

We understand that per Section 13.c.4 of the draft contract, the 
Contractor’s liability for significant repairs to Facilities is 
unlimited. Further, the Contract may be obligated to pay for up 
to the full cost of significant repairs even if the Contractor 
complies with the manufacturer’s preventative maintenance 
schedule and the need for the significant repair “is not due to 
any act or omission of the Contractor”. Is this correct?

See answer to question 101

260 Could the RTA cap liability to allow all competitors to assess 
and price this risk on a similar ground? No.  See changes to Section 27 coming via addendum.

261

Is the RTA’s intent to pay for the full cost of replacements and 
repairs over $25,000, as long as the Contractor complied with 
the applicable manufacturer’s preventative maintenance 
schedule and the need for such replacement or repair was not 
due to any omission of the Contractor?

See answer to question 101

262
The RFP mentions the requirement for the Contractor to adhere 
to the RTA’s Capital Program. Is it expected that the Contractor 
will have a dedicated position to manage this coordination?

A dedicated position is not required pursuant to the RFP 
and Draft Contract. How a proposer chooses to address this 
coordination is at their discretion. 

263

The data room file “List or RTA properties” does not list several 
RTA facilities, such as the ferry terminals: Canal St, Algiers, 
Gretna, Lower Algiers (include the ferry administrative offices), 
and Chalmette. What responsibility, if any, does the Contractor 
have for maintaining those facilities? What is the condition of 
those facilities?

Please see attached. Additionally, the information on the 
main data page has been updated.

264
How many stops and shelters does the RTA have? What is the 
Contractor’s responsibility for cleaning and maintaining those? 
This includes:

Please see attached. Additional information is provided in 
questions 265-271 and 279.

265 How many stops have trash cans, and how often must they be 
emptied? Please see attached.

266 How often must graffiti be cleaned from shelters? Please see attached.
267 How often must shelters be cleaned? See answer to question 266.
268 How often must stops without shelters be cleaned? See answer to question 266.

269 Who has responsibility for cutting grass and clearing vegetation 
at shelters? What is the frequency of this task? See answer to question 266.

270 Who has responsibility for cutting grass and clearing vegetation 
at stops without shelters? What is the frequency of this task? See answer to question 266.

271
Who has responsibility for cutting grass and clearing vegetation 
on streetcar right-of-way on the neutral ground? What is the 
frequency of this task?

Please see attached.

https://www.dropbox.com/s/fmd6htdizjneqmj/Question%20258.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/fmd6htdizjneqmj/Question%20258.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/tcxpwlw6uloh4j9/Question%20263.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/tcxpwlw6uloh4j9/Question%20263.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/0zgnd07becpzkeu/Question%20264.xlsx?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/0zgnd07becpzkeu/Question%20264.xlsx?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/aexdxqbglqfrqry/Question%20265.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/o59lcu2llam3fbn/Question%20266.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/1ftscrgq0qvhpdo/Question%20271.pdf?dl=0


272

Can the RTA please provide details on the rail tracks and 
catenary system that must be maintained? This includes the 
number, location, and condition of poles, miles of feeder cable, 
miles of trolley wire, and miles of guy wire.

Please see attached.

273
Please confirm that the fleet replacement schedule provided in 
the data room is the year vehicles are procured, rather than the 
year they are delivered and put in service.

The fleet replacement schedule provided is an anticipated 
procurement timeline, and does not reflect a financed fleet 
replacement plan or actual in-service dates for new 
equipment. 

274
The fleet replacement schedule in the data room notes that 
there will be an “all-electric fleet by 2030”. In view of that note, 
please confirm the fuel type for all vehicles in this schedule.

Please see question 113.

275

Section 13.f of the draft contract requires the Contractor to 
incorporate the RTA’s Environmental Policy and the RTA’s 
Environmental Sustainability Management Plan. Please provide 
these two documents.

These documents will be created in coordination with the 
successful proposer.

276

Section 13.c of the draft contract states that the Contract must 
comply with the “terms of the Facility Maintenance Manual and 
its approved Facility Maintenance Plan”. Who is responsible for 
producing the Facility Maintenance Manual and when must it be 
produced? What is the difference in content and use between 
the Facility Maintenance Manual and the Facility Maintenance 
Plan?

These documents will be created in coordination with the 
successful proposer.

277

Section 2.d.5 of the draft contract requires that the Contractor 
comply with the RTA’s Maintenance Staffing Requirements in 
Attachment C-2. However, these requirements are currently 
under development. Are these requirements expected to affect 
existing levels of maintenance staff?

These documents will be created in coordination with the 
successful proposer.

278

Is it expected that the RTA Vehicle Condition Policy (Attachment 
C-1 of the draft contract) will be completed and made available 
to proposers before March 1, 2019 in order to allow the bidders 
to study it in time for the March 15 proposal submittal date?

These documents will be created in coordination with the 
successful proposer.

279

What type of landscaping along streetcar lines, such as re-
seeding or re-sodding the grass after special events or at other 
times of year, must the Contractor do? What is the length of 
streetcar right-of-way along which those services are required? 
What is the frequency for those services?

Please see attached.

280 Who has responsibility for ensuring the streetcar and bus 
envelopes are clear from branches and other vegetation?

The City of New Orleans and the RTA have joint 
responsibility for maintenance of vegetation along the rights-
of way. The contractor is responsible for reporting issues 
along service routes.

281

Can the RTA confirm that the RTA’s intention is for streetcar on-
time performance standards to be the same as bus on-time 
performance standards, despite lower on-time performance for 
streetcars than buses in New Orleans and for the two other US 
cities with similar large streetcar networks (Philadelphia and 
San Francisco)?

Correct, Refer to response to Question 220.

282

Section 4.2.6 (point 5) of the RFP suggests that the RTA will 
have responsibility for all capital works. Today, streetcar capital 
refurbishment is done by Transdev staff. The unique nature of 
the RTA’s streetcars makes capital refurbishment difficult to 
contract out to third parties. Will streetcar capital refurbishment 
be part of the Contractor’s scope of work?

Please see attached for the partial and full repair/repaint 
schedule. This activity is considered maintenance and is 
part of the scope of work.

283 Does the requirement for vehicle operator training in Section 6.d 
of the draft contract also apply to ferry captains? See updated Section 6.d coming via addendum.

284
Is the ferry Incentive threshold for on-time performance in 
Section 22.b.1.iii of the draft contract a) by route, b) Average of 
all routes, c) total percentage of all trips, or d) something else?

The On-Time Performance KPM (1) (iii) in Section 22 of the 
O&M Agreement, intends to award Incentive for Ferry for 
the total percentage of all trips.

https://www.dropbox.com/s/far7lnr5zqjywlx/Question%20272.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/s3f6gwh5qxqck7m/Question%20279.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/6lurkvpnj7g2v4i/Question%20282.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/6lurkvpnj7g2v4i/Question%20282.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/6lurkvpnj7g2v4i/Question%20282.pdf?dl=0


285

Please confirm that since ferry passengers are typically fewer 
than 100,000 passengers per month, a single customer 
complaint on ferry service would usually trigger the Deduction in 
Section 22.b.9 of the draft contract.

RTA intends to amend (9) to Part (b) of Section 22 of the 
O&M Agreement, to "Ferry – more than 2.0 complaints per 
100,000 Boardings."

286

For reporting purposes, ferry Revenue Service Hours are 
currently reported as [15 minutes * number of completed trips]. 
This follows longstanding practice originally set by the State of 
Louisiana. However, the current method may underreport actual 
hours of in-service time, since missed trips due to ferries 
running behind scheduled are not captured by this method. In 
accordance with Section 1.40 of the draft contract, please 
confirm the RTA’s intention to change this reporting method to 
actual hours of in-service time. If this is the RTA’s intent, will the 
RTA mandate a system to capture and report actual in-service 
hours on ferries, or is it the Contractor’s responsibility to 
propose and implement an adequate system?

It will be the contractor's responsibility to propose and 
implement an adequate system.

287 What constitutes a “failure” of the Clever Devices system in 
Section 23.13 of the draft contract?

Failure refers to an instance in which the Clever Device 
System fails to operate correctly.

288

Can the RTA clarify the exact titles and scopes of work for 
safety plans? Throughout the RFP and draft contract, two 
slightly different names are used: 1) System Safety Program 
Plan/Safety Plan (such as in RFP Section 4.1.3.7) and 2) 
System Safety Program Plan/Agency Safety Plan (such as in 
draft contract Attachment H). Can the RTA confirm: The name 
of the safety plan? That it is the Contractor’s responsibility to 
develop an Agency Safety Plan for the RTA by July 2020, as 
required by the FTA’s Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan 
(PTASP) Final Rule? To save paper, may proposers submit the 
System Safety Program Plan/Safety Plan (or Agency Safety 
Plan, per question above) by USB key, rather than as printed 
hard copies? 

The plan referenced is the System Safety Program Plan / 
Agency Safety Plan.  It is the contractor's responsibility to 
provide the "necessary level of effort to maintain 
compliance and forward progress" on RTA's SSP/ASP.  All 
documents must be provided in a paper and digital format.  

289

Section 2.d.1 states that the Contractor’s duties include 
“providing security for the Revenue and Non-Revenue Vehicles 
and the Facilities”. Please specify the security requirement in 
terms of: Facilities where security must be provided.  Times and 
days of the week when security must be provided at each 
Facility. The number of entrances and exits at each Facility. 

Please see attached.

290 What is the relationship and responsibility of the Contractor in 
managing or coordinating with transit police?

The RTA's relationship with the Transit Police unit of the 
New Orleans Police Department will be managed directly by 
the RTA. The contractor will interact with the Transit Police 
insofar as contacting the officers as needed for traffic, 
safety, and/or other situations which require police 
presence. 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/jqtf4jgv7lkr353/Question%20289.pdf?dl=0


291

Based on section 23.11 of the draft contract, we understand the 
RTA’s intent is that the Contractor’s 31.4% DBE target is to be 
measured as: [DBE purchases]/[total value of all purchases of 
goods and services (including subcontracting)]. Please confirm 
if this is correct, or if it is not, what the correct equation is for this 
calculation.

It is correct that Section 23.11 subpart (C) of the draft 
contract requires that the DBE report include the percent 
(by dollar amount) of purchases of goods and services from 
DBE firms, as measured against all purchases of goods and 
services (including purchases of goods and services from 
the Contractor’s subcontractors).  This is a useful statistic 
for the RTA.  However, this calculation is limited to the 
reporting requirement set out in Section 23.11 subpart (C) 
and should not be confused with the DBE Requirements set 
forth in Section 3.5 of the RFP and the related documents 
in Appendix 4.  The DBE Reporting Form, which will be in a 
format to be approved by the RTA, will require that the 
Contractor provide any information that the RTA must 
collect in order to satisfy the requirements of 49 Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 26, et seq., and in particular 49 
C.F.R. §26.37, which may include information in addition to 
what is stated in Section 23.11 of the draft contract.  See 49 
C.F.R §26.55 for further guidance regarding the calculation 
of DBE participation towards the 31.4% contract goal.  Each 
proposer is required to demonstrate that it will either 
achieve that level of DBE participation or document 
satisfactory good faith efforts towards achieving that level of 
DBE participation.  See Appendix A to 49 C.F.R. Part 26 for 
further guidance concerning good faith efforts.
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